
Hastings Prince Edward Public Health 
Main Office - 179 North Park Street, Belleville, ON  K8P 4P1 

RSVP to 
 clovell@hpeph.ca or 613-966-5500, Ext 231 

BOARD OF HEALTH  
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Wednesday, September 27, 2023 
1:30 p.m.  3:00 p.m. 

Virtual via ZOOM 

To ensure a quorum we ask that you please 

mailto:clovell@hpeph.ca


Our Values
Show We CARE

Our Strategic Priorities

Together with our communities, 
we help people become as 

healthy as they can be.

Healthy Communities,
Healthy People.

Our Vision Our Mission

Program
Standards

Health
Promotion

Population Health
Assessment and 

Surveillance

Community
Engagement

Staff 
Engagement
and Culture

hpePublicHealth.ca  /  613 - 966 - 5500
BELLEVILLE / NORTH HASTINGS / PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY / QUINTE WEST

Hastings Prince Edward Public Health

2019 - 2023
Strategic Plan



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
A G E N D A 

 
Wednesday, September 27, 2023 

Virtual via ZOOM 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2.  ROLL CALL 
 
3. LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
4. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND THE GENERAL NATURE 

THEREOF 
 
5.  APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
  6.1 Meeting Minutes dated April 26, 2023   Schedule 6.1 
 
7. BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 
  
8.  NEW BUSINESS 
  8.1 2023 January to August Revenues & Expenses Schedule 8.1 
  8.2 Status of GIC Investment Schedule 8.2 
  8.3 2024 Budget / Funding Assumptions Schedule 8.3 
  
9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 Wednesday, November 22, 2023 at 1:30 p.m. 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 



Minutes approved at _________________, 2023 Finance Meeting Page 1 of 3

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
M I N U T E S 

Wednesday, April 26, 2023 at 1:30 p.m.
Hastings Prince Edward Public Health

Virtual Via ZOOM 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

Present: Mr. Garnet Thompson, Councillor, City of Belleville, Finance Chair
Ms. Kimberly Carson, Mayor, Limerick Township, Hastings County
Dr. Craig Ervine, Provincial Representative
Mr. John Hirsch, Councillor, Prince Edward County
Mr. Michael Kotsovos, Councillor, City of Quinte West
Ms. Jan O’Neill, Mayor, Township of Marmora and Lake, Hastings County,

Board Chair

Also Present: Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Medical Officer of Health and CEO
Dr. Kathryn Cleverley, Medical Resident, PHPM Program
Mr. David Johnston, Director of Corporate Services
Ms. Amy Rankin, Finance Manager
Ms. Catherine Lovell, Executive Assistant
Ms. Katie Mahon, Partner, KPMG LLP

1. CALL TO ORDER
Meeting was called to order at 1:33 p.m. by Councillor Garnet Thompson.

2. ROLL CALL

3. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND THE GENERAL NATURE
THEREOF – None

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
THAT the agenda for the Finance Committee held on April 26, 2023 be approved
as circulated.

MOTION:
Moved by: Jan
Seconded by: Kimberley
CARRIED

Schedule 6.1



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes Wednesday, April 26, 2023

Minutes approved at _________________, 2023 Finance Meeting Page 2 of 3

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
THAT the minutes of meeting held on February 22, 2023 be approved as
circulated.

MOTION:
Moved by:  John
Seconded by:  Jan
CARRIED

6. BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES - None

7. NEW BUSINESS
7.1 2023 First Quarter Revenues and Expenses

There was a question around the HBHC program and funding.  It was noted
that the funding for this program comes wholly from the Ministry of Children,
Community, and Social Services and therefore, funding is determined by
that Ministry.

At this point in the meeting Councillor Kotsovos excused himself from the meeting. (1:43 pm)

7.2 Summary of Annual Service Plan Submission 

There was some discussion around one-time funding and the timing of
receipt of that funding.  It was noted that while we do not expect to receive
confirmation of funding until Summer 2023, some plans have been
implemented in anticipation (such as replacing a vaccine fridge, summer
PHI students have been hired and COVID related work) while other funding
will not be utilized until confirmed, however plans are made and ready to
implement.

7.3 Draft Audit Findings Report

Ms. Katie Mahon reviewed the draft audit findings report with the Committee
noting there is a new audit standard in place, the effects of which will not be
seen outright in the financial statements but does affect the work the auditors
do.  She noted the status of the audit is complete, with no significant
deficiencies, changes in accounting policies or adjustments by management.

THAT the Finance Committee receive the three reports as circulated and
recommend taking to the Board in May.

MOTION:
Moved by: Kimberley
Seconded by:  Jan
CARRIED

Schedule 6.1



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes Wednesday, April 26, 2023

Minutes approved at _________________, 2023 Finance Meeting Page 3 of 3

7.4 Draft Audited Financial Statements 

Ms. Mahon then reviewed the draft financial statements noting there are no
significant concerns.  Ms. Mahon went on to thank Ms. Rankin for her help
during the audit resulting in a smooth audit process.

THAT the Finance Committee receive the draft audited financial statements for the
period ending December 31, 2022 as circulated and recommend taking to the
Board for approval at the May meeting.

MOTION:
Moved by:  Jan
Seconded by:  Kimberley
CARRIED

Councillor Thompson thanked Ms. Mahon and KPMG for their diligent work as this
is only the second year of audits with them and Chair O’Neill thanked Health Unit
staff for a great job in keeping our books in good order.

David Johnston, Director of Corporate Services mentioned that he will be conducting a
Finance Committee training session in the near future for those who would like to attend.
More information will be sent out as soon as it is available.

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Wednesday, September 27, 2023 at 1:30 p.m. - Virtual via ZOOM

9. ADJOURNMENT
That the Finance Committee meeting be adjourned at 2:22 p.m.

MOTION:
Moved by: Kimberley
Seconded by: Craig
CARRIED

Councillor Garnet Thompson,
Finance Committee Chair

Schedule 6.1



Finance Committee Briefing Note 

To: HPE Board of Health Finance Committee

Prepared by: David Johnston, Director of Corporate Services

Reviewed by: Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Medical Officer of Health and CEO

Date: Wednesday, September 27, 2023

Subject: January to August Revenues & Expenses 
September to December Expectations 

Nature of Board 
Engagement 

  For Information 
Strategic Discussion

Board approval and motion required

Compliance with Accountability

Framework Compliance with Program

Standards

Action Required: Review of YTD revenues and expenses and recommend presenting
to the Board of Health at October 4 meeting.

Notes regarding 
Revenues & 
Expenses 

The following notes are provided to assist in the review of the attached
Summary of Revenues & Expenses for the period of January 1 –
August 31, 2023.

• Within the Accountability Agreement reporting, we have
separated costs to provide information related to ongoing
Mandatory Programs and the Ontario Seniors Dental
Program.

• Overall, as of August 31 we are on target for revenues,
largely due to Federal grants and Expenditure recoveries.

• The variance in Ministry of Health Annual and one-time grants
relates to the flow of funds, timing related to approvals from
the Ministry.

• Salaries and Benefits are impacted by outstanding union
settlements.

• Staff Training costs include events that are scheduled for fall
2023.

• Travel Expenses are well under expectation. Our approach
to service delivery for some programs is the rationale for this
variance.

• Office Expenses, Printing, Postage are within reasonable
levels consistent with operations.

• Professional and Purchased Services include 100% of
insurance costs for the year, and further represents an
increase in purchased dental services due to significant
growth in Ontario Seniors Dental Program demand.

• The variance in Information Technology reflects service
agreement costs that were paid in full for the year, in addition to
the cost of software purchased in the spring.

Schedule 8.1



• Overall Mandatory Programs are under-budget as of
September 30. However, this is anticipated to balance by
the end of the fiscal year.

• The Ontario Seniors Dental Program has a small balance left
as of August 31. We expect to receive the dental vehicles this
fall. The Ministry is committed to funding this important initiative
and we anticipate additional funding opportunities for this
program will be provided.

• The column labelled Ministry of Health Annual and one-time
grants account for the costs of the 8 School-Focused Nursing
positions, the MOH Compensation Grant, extraordinary costs
related to COVID-19, and the remaining cost of the mobile
dental clinics.

• The School-Focused Nursing funding, expired June 30.
All of these funds were spent.

• Both mobile dental clinics are nearing completion. The
full $550,000 for the mobile clinics will be spent by the
end of March 31, 2024 as per the contract.

• The MOH compensation grant application has
been submitted and we are awaiting approval.

• Extraordinary funding to support COVID-19 work will
be approved for public health units based on need,
after submission of the Q3 and Q4 reports.

• The Healthy Babies Healthy Children program has a
surplus at August 31. However, this is expected to balance
by March, which is the fiscal year end for this program.

• The Federal Grants have provided 100% of their
revenues. This results in a surplus balance of $24,554 to
be utilized by March 2024. This is the fiscal year end for
the Children’s Oral Health Initiative.

Schedule 8.1



H
AS

TI
N

G
S 

PR
IN

CE
 E

D
W

AR
D

 P
U

BL
IC

 H
EA

LT
H

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
&

 E
xp

en
se

s 
fo

r t
he

 p
er

io
d 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1 
- A

ug
us

t 3
1,

 2
02

3
Fo

r F
in

an
ce

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 R

ev
ie

w
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
7,

 2
02

3

 M
an

da
to

ry
 

Pr
og

ra
m

s
in

c.
 C

O
VI

D

10
0%

 S
en

io
rs

 
D

en
ta

l P
ro

gr
am

 

TO
TA

L 
M

in
is

tr
y 

of
 

H
ea

lth
 

Pr
og

ra
m

s

M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 
H

ea
lth

 A
nn

ua
l 

an
d 

on
e 

tim
e 

G
ra

nt
s

M
CC

SS
H

BH
C 

 
(A

pr
il-

M
ar

ch
)

Fe
de

ra
l G

ra
nt

s 
(A

pr
il-

M
ar

ch
)

YE
AR

 T
O

 D
AT

E 
TO

TA
L 

 A
N

N
U

AL
 

BU
D

G
ET

 
YT

D
 B

ud
ge

t 
Va

ria
nc

e

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
ls

 a
s 

%
 o

f b
ud

ge
t

(8
/1

2 
= 

67
%

) 

RE
VE

N
U

ES

M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 H
ea

lth
 M

an
da

to
ry

 a
nd

 1
00

%
 P

ro
gr

am
s

6,
19

7,
86

1
78

6,
79

7
6,

98
4,

65
8

6,
98

4,
65

8
10

,7
43

,4
52

3,
75

8,
79

4
65

%

M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 H
ea

lth
 A

nn
ua

l a
nd

 o
ne

 ti
m

e 
gr

an
ts

0
49

0,
90

8
49

0,
90

8
79

0,
00

0
29

9,
09

2
62

%

M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 H
ea

lth
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Fu
nd

in
g

74
6,

67
0

74
6,

67
0

74
6,

67
0

1,
12

0,
00

0
37

3,
33

0
67

%

M
un

ic
ip

al
 L

ev
ie

s 
2,

72
4,

10
8

2,
72

4,
10

8
2,

72
4,

10
8

3,
63

0,
10

8
90

6,
00

0
75

%

M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 C
hi

ld
re

n,
 C

om
m

un
ity

 &
 S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s
0

74
6,

56
1

74
6,

56
1

1,
16

0,
54

3
41

3,
98

2
64

%

Fe
de

ra
l G

ra
nt

s
0

50
,5

16
50

,5
16

39
,0

00
(1

1,
51

6)
13

0%

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 R

ec
ov

er
ie

s 
10

8,
90

5
4,

82
5

11
3,

73
0

11
3,

73
0

12
2,

70
0

8,
97

0
93

%

Tr
an

sf
er

 fr
om

 R
es

er
ve

s
0

0
0

0

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
9,

77
7,

54
4

79
1,

62
2

10
,5

69
,1

66
49

0,
90

8
74

6,
56

1
50

,5
16

11
,8

57
,1

51
17

,6
05

,8
03

5,
74

8,
65

2
67

%

EX
PE

N
SE

S

Sa
la

rie
s 

an
d 

W
ag

es
5,

67
4,

39
1

16
0,

02
6

5,
83

4,
41

7
34

5,
48

5
50

0,
12

4
20

,6
21

6,
70

0,
64

8
10

,6
28

,9
83

3,
92

8,
33

5
63

%

St
af

f B
en

ef
its

 
1,

75
9,

94
3

37
,0

63
1,

79
7,

00
7

75
,3

39
10

0,
51

6
4,

96
2

1,
97

7,
82

4
3,

00
6,

56
0

1,
02

8,
73

6
66

%

St
af

f T
ra

in
in

g 
82

,6
51

32
4

82
,9

75
1,

05
9

84
,0

35
20

0,
40

0
11

6,
36

5
42

%

Tr
av

el
 E

xp
en

se
s

80
,8

07
62

80
,8

69
2,

81
6

16
,6

06
10

0,
29

1
17

1,
00

0
70

,7
09

59
%

Bu
ild

in
g 

O
cc

up
an

cy
 

72
5,

40
3

17
,9

00
74

3,
30

3
11

,2
50

75
4,

55
3

1,
05

2,
00

0
29

7,
44

7
72

%

O
ff

ic
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

, P
rin

tin
g,

 P
os

ta
ge

38
,8

00
38

,8
00

7,
14

8
57

0
46

,5
17

65
,0

00
18

,4
83

72
%

M
at

er
ia

ls
, S

up
pl

ie
s

18
7,

08
4

45
,6

09
23

2,
69

4
7,

90
6

37
8

24
0,

97
8

42
0,

86
0

17
9,

88
2

57
%

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 &
 P

ur
ch

as
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s
24

1,
87

0
45

2,
27

4
69

4,
14

4
69

4,
14

4
1,

09
2,

00
0

39
7,

85
6

64
%

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 C
os

ts
77

,1
93

2,
35

0
79

,5
43

2,
75

0
82

,2
93

12
9,

00
0

46
,7

07
64

%

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
52

0,
43

8
34

,7
31

55
5,

16
8

8,
45

2
56

3,
62

0
55

0,
00

0
(1

3,
62

0)
10

2%

Ca
pi

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

0
0

0
30

,0
00

30
,0

00
0%

Tr
an

sf
er

 to
 C

ap
ita

l/O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

se
rv

es
17

3,
33

3
17

3,
33

3
17

3,
33

3
26

0,
00

0
86

,6
67

67
%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

s 
9,

56
1,

91
3

75
0,

34
0

10
,3

12
,2

53
43

0,
78

8
64

9,
23

3
25

,9
62

11
,4

18
,2

36
17

,6
05

,8
03

6,
18

7,
56

7
65

%

VA
RI

AN
CE

21
5,

63
1

41
,2

82
25

6,
91

2
60

,1
20

97
,3

29
24

,5
54

43
8,

91
5

0
43

8,
91

5

M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 H
ea

lth
 

Ac
co

un
ta

bi
lit

y 
Ag

re
em

en
t 

O
th

er
 G

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
s

To
ta

ls
 a

nd
 B

ud
ge

t A
na

ly
si

s

Schedule 8.1



Finance Committee Briefing Note 

To: HPE Board of Health Finance Committee

Prepared by: Amy Rankin, Finance Manager

Reviewed by: David Johnston, Director of Corporate Services

Date: Wednesday, September 27, 2023

Subject: Status of GIC Investment 
Nature of Board 
Engagement

For Information
Strategic Discussion

Board approval and motion required

Compliance with Accountability Framework

Compliance with Program Standards

Action Required: No action required.

Background: In July of 2023, Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH) invested the 
Capital Reserve into a 1-year GIC at a return rate of 5.8%. In addition, the 
Operating Reserve invested in September 2022, was redeemed from a 1-year 
flexible GIC. 

The following is an excerpt from HPEPH Accounting Practices Policy: 

Operating Fund Reserve

The Operating Fund Reserve shall account for retainable surplus funds generated
through operations. The Operating Fund will be restricted for unforeseen
operating expenses, catastrophic expenses and contingencies. Expenditures
from the Operating Fund Reserve shall be approved by the Medical Officer of
Health and/or Board Signatories in accordance with signing authority limits
established in the By-law to govern the banking, financial activities and duties of 
the Auditor of the Board of Health.

The Operating Fund Reserve should be maintained at all times at the greater of
one month’s regular operating expenses or $1.5 million unless an exceptional
situation is reviewed and approved by the Board of Health.  Regular operating
expenses refer to typical transfer payment amounts from municipal, provincial
and federal sources and exclude one-time project funds or extraordinary funding
as well as expenditure recoveries or any transfers from reserves.

Capital Fund Reserve

The Capital Fund Reserve shall be restricted to building renovations, major
repairs, leasehold improvements and other capital investments or cost-shared
one-time capital funding requests as approved by the Board of Health.

The amount of the Capital Fund Reserve will be reviewed annually in relation to
the Capital Funding Plan policy however a minimum of $2.0 million shall be
maintained in the Reserve at all times unless an exceptional situation is reviewed
and approved by the Board of Health.

Schedule 8.2



Finance Committee Briefing Note 

To: HPE Board of Health Finance Committee

Prepared by: David Johnston, Director of Corporate Services

Approved by: Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Medical Officer of Health and CEO

Date: Wednesday, September 27, 2023

Subject: 2024 Budget Update 
Nature of Board 
Engagement

 For Information 
 Strategic Discussion 
 Board approval and motion required 
Compliance with Accountability Framework

Compliance with Program Standards

Action Required: Finance Committee to review and discuss request for operating reserve allocation
to offset projected 2024 budget deficit.

Finance Committee to recommend motion for approval at the Board of Health
meeting on October 4, 2023.

Background: The Ministry of Health has confirmed grant funding levels for 2024. Key items
include a return to the previous cost-shared formula of 75/25, and 1% growth
funding. Unfortunately, with increased costs across all areas, the 2024 draft
budget shows a significant deficit balance.

Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH) will finalize plans over the
coming weeks to balance the budget, and present to the Finance Committee for
review in November.

For planning purposes, the request is being made to allocate up to $300,000 from
the operating reserves of the Board of Health to the 2024 budget as committed
revenues. Operating reserves on December 31, 2022 were $2,262,853.

The balance of the deficit will be made up through not filling staff positions, a staff
vacancy factor (e.g. Leaves of Absence, attrition, etc.) as well as continued work
on cost savings in discretionary budget items.

Recommendation: Finance Committee to recommend motion for approval by the Board of Health.

Schedule 8.3




